
 

Memorandum 
             
 
To:  Morganton Planning & Zoning Commission Members 
From: Phillip Lookadoo, Director D&D Services  
Date:  September 30, 2020 
Subject: P&Z meeting to be held October 8, 2020 
             
 
 
 
 
The Morganton Planning & Zoning Commission will meet on Thursday, 
October 8, at 5:15 pm in the City Hall Council Chamber. Please contact 
Jackie Cain (828) 438-5260 to confirm your attendance 
 
In response to the order issued by Governor Roy Cooper (phase 2.5), and to help mitigate 
the spread of COVID-19, the Planning & Zoning Commission will hold a meeting 
October 8, 2020 with the following guidelines.  The Council Chamber will be open to the 
public with limitations.  Listed below are ways to participate while remaining in 
compliance with the Governor’s orders. 
 
If citizens wish to address the commission during the meeting they may: 
 

1. Send an email to: jcain@ci.morganton.nc.us 
 

2. Send a letter to: City of Morganton, Attn: Jackie Cain, P.O. Box 3448, 
Morganton, NC 28680 

 
3. Hand deliver a letter to City Hall: 305 East Union Street by 9:00 a.m. on 

Wednesday, October 7, 2020. 
 

4. If a citizen would like to address the commission in person, they may attend the 
scheduled meeting.  Limitation of fifty (50) individuals are allowed in the council 
chamber.  Additional seating and live feed will be available in the lobby of city 
hall. Masks will be required.  Please contact Jackie Cain (828) 438-5260 with any 
questions.  Speakers during any public hearing shall be limited to three (3) 
minutes each.   Citizens will be allowed into Council Chamber.  
 

All comments (emails or letters) must be received by 9:00 a.m.  
on Thursday October 8, 2020. 

 
 

 

    
 

mailto:jcain@ci.morganton.nc.us


Morganton Planning & Zoning Commission  
Agenda:  October 8, 2020  

City Hall Conference Room 4 
305 East Union Street (Suite A100) 

 
I.   OLD BUSINESS: 
 
 Item 1: Review and approval of the July 9, 2020 minutes. 
 
  Item 2: Review of City Council action since last meeting. 
   

• City Council met in August and approved a map amendment for a 
proposed rezoning located at 107 Old Jamestown Road (PIN 
1793137357 and (1793138261) to reflect the intent of the 2030 Land 
Use Plan and to also match adjacent land uses. 

• City Council met in September and appointed Kevin Kee to vacant 
position on Planning & Zoning.  This term will expire June 3, 2023.  

 
II.   APPEARANCES 
 
This Agenda time is reserved to provide citizens an opportunity to appear before the 
Planning Commission about issues other than those appearing on the agenda.  Citizens may 
present their planning ideas, opinions or concerns for Commission consideration and 
discussion.  Anyone wishing to speak should come to the podium, state their name, and 
address for the record.  
 
III. NEW BUSINESS  
 
Item 1:  Application from William Andrews for consideration for an   
  amendment to the Zoning Ordinance sections 3.2 Overlay Districts, 4.2 
  Density and Dimensional Standards, and 4.8 Building Design   
  Standards. These changes are for the proposed  addition of a new  
  overlay zone “Restricted Residential Overlay (RR-   
  O)” to the City of Morganton Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Item 2: A public meeting will be held concerning a proposed rezoning of a  
  0.95+-  acre track (PIN# 2703156576), 0.44+- acre tract (PIN#   
  2703158591), 0.33+-  acre tract (PIN# 2703159443) and 0.29+- acre  
  tract (PIN#2703157369) located at 313 West Union Street, 101 Lyman  
  Court, 103 Lyman Court and 104 Lyman Court from Conditional Use 
  (CU) to Medium Intensity District & Restricted Residential Overlay  
  (MID/RR-O) submitted by William F. Andrews.  
 
Item 3: Application submitted by Nancy VanNoppen for consideration for an  
  amendment to the Zoning Ordinance, Table of Permitted Uses, to  
  allow Body Art Establishments (tattoos & body piercing) as a   
  permitted use in the  Central Business District with conditions.  
 
 
 



OTHER ITEMS OF DISCUSSION 
 
IV. ADJOURN  
Next Scheduled P&Z Meeting:   Thursday November 12, 2020 at 5:15 PM  

City Hall Council Chamber 



Minutes 
Morganton Planning & Zoning 

July 9, 2020 
Members Present:                                                       Members Absent:  
Hank Dickens, Chairman     Eric Engstrom 
Bill Lennon, Vice-Chairman    Pete Wallace 
Judy Francis        
Rick Lingerfelt      
Waits Gordon 
Don Smith 
 
Also present from the City staff were Phillip Lookadoo, Director Development Design 
Services; Louis Vinay, City Attorney; and Jackie Cain, Administrative Manager.  
 
I. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
Item 1:        Review and approval of the June 18, 2020 minutes. 

 
Mr. Dickens stated a copy of the minutes from the June 18, 2020 meeting were provided.  
Motion to adopt as submitted was approved unanimously (6-0). 
 

       Item 2:       Review of City Council action since last meeting   
 

Mr. Dickens asked Mr. Lookadoo to update commission on actions taken by city council. 
 
Mr. Lookadoo stated City Council had no meeting in July and therefore there was no 
action taken. 
 
II.      APPEARANCES:  
 
Mr. Dickens stated this time is set-aside for individuals to come before the planning 
board to express any planning related concerns to the planning board. 
 
None. 
 
III. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Item :  Review proposal to rezone a parcel located at 107 Old Jamestown Road 

(PIN 1793137357) to reflect the intent of the 2030 Land Use Plan and to 
also match adjacent land uses. 

 
Mr. Dickens asked Mr. Lookadoo to review the request. 
 
Mr. Lookadoo stated this request was in effort to bring the property into compliance with 
the 2030 map.  Mr. Lookadoo stated planning commission directed staff to prepare a 
rezoning application at the June 18, 2020 meeting.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 
Mr. Lookadoo reviewed the rezoning recommendation.   
 
Case # 03-2020 
107 Old Jamestown Road Rezoning Recommendation  
NCPINS: 1793137357, 1793138261 
  
Background 



 2 
To cause the principles and goals, relative to a conducive and friendly environment to 
economic development, of the Mission 2030 Plan to be implemented; the City of 
Morganton redrafted and adopted its zoning code. Along with the new code came new and 
more simplified zoning districts from what was in place. It was therefore necessary to 
assign a new zoning designation to every parcel of property within the City’s zoning 
jurisdiction.   
 
To assign zoning districts to parcels of land correctly, and part of the comprehensive 
planning process contained in the Mission 2030 plan, an evaluation had to take place. This 
evaluation involved an inventory of land uses (existing land use) for each parcel and the 
subsequent assigning of a proposed land use (future land use) to be consistent with the 
goals of the Mission 2030 plan. With the adoption of the Mission 2030 plan, the future land 
use for each parcel was assigned. New zoning designations for each parcel were then based 
on the parcel’s future land use.  
 
In the case of the parcels associated with 107 Old Jamestown Road, identified as NC 
PINS: 1793137357, 1793138261, the future land use of “General Business/Commercial” 
was assigned. This was appropriate as all the parcels in that block were designated as 
such. These two parcels and two others owned by SGL Carbon, LLC; however, were 
zoned “Exclusive Industrial District (EID).” Staff cannot verify but, it appears that the 
ownership of the parcels caused them to mistakenly be zoned EID as opposed to the 
“General Business/Commercial” zoning district of “High Intensity District (HID).” 

 
 
 
Zone Comparison 
EID zoning designation provides for industrial development only while HID provides for 
an array of general commercial, high density residential, and light industrial uses.  



 3 

 
 
 
 
 
Public Services 
Access – Through Old Jamestown Road to Carbon City Road.  
  
Water – Lines are in Old Jamestown Road 
 
Sewer – Lines are in Old Jamestown Road 
  
Planned Land Use 
As stated above, the future land use designation for these parcels is “General 
Business/Commercial.”  
 
Future Rezoning 
Future rezoning applications should fully take into consideration the analysis considered 
in determining future land use as part of the Mission 2030 Plan.  
 
Spot Zoning 
This request will not constitute spot zoning as adjacent parcels are currently zoned HID.  
  
Impact to Surrounding Properties 
The re-zoning consideration would allow for compatible uses to the adjacent parcels and 
the district.  
 
 
Mr. Lookadoo stated staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve 
map amendment for the parcels associated with 107 Old Jamestown Road and identified 
as NC PINS: 1793137357 and 1793138261. 
  
Mr. Dickens asked commission if they had questions for Mr. Lookadoo. 
None 
 



 4 
Mr. Dickens opened public hearing. 
 
Mr. Timothy Sutton, 107 Old Jamestown Road, stated he was an employee with SGL 
Carbon for the last 32 years.  He stated since 2012 he had been the secretary/treasurer of 
the ICWUC for SGL Carbon.  He stated the office for the union was located at 107 Old 
Jamestown Road A.  He stated he would answer any questions from commission. 
 
Mr. Dickens asked the level of activity for the ICWUC. 
 
Mr. Sutton stated the union typically met the first Tuesday of the month.  He stated in 1988 
Rector Appliances occupied unit B, then in 2002 Carbon City Credit Union occupied the 
location.  Lastly there was a thrift store at the location.  He stated he has a new tenant 
interested in the location and found out everything wasn’t right when the tenant completed 
their zoning permit application. 
 
Mr. Dickens asked if he was in favor of the amendment. 
 
Mr. Sutton agreed he was. 
 
Mr. Dickens asked for any other inquiries from the audience. None 
 
Mr. Dickens closed public hearing. 
 
Mr. Lennon made a motion to approve the map amendment to be in compliant with Mission 
2030 plan for the parcels associated with 107 Old Jamestown Road and identified as NC 
PINS: 1793137357 and 1793138261, seconded by Ms. Francis and passed unanimously 
(6-0). 
 
 
OTHER ITEMS OF DISCUSSION 
 
Ms. Francis questioned if the approved city budget included funds for comprehensive 
plan. 
 
Mr. Lookadoo stated due to Covid-19 and budget restraints, funds were not appropriated 
for 20-21 budget year. 
 
 
ADJOURN  
 
Next Scheduled P&Z Meeting:   Thursday August 13, 2020 at 5:15 PM  

City Hall Council Chamber 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



CITY OF MORGANTON 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY    DATE:   October 2020   
 
 
SUBJECT:   
Application from William Andrews for consideration of an amendment to the text of the Zoning 
Ordinance, specifically sections 3.2 Overlay Districts, 4.2 Density and Dimensional Standards, 
and 4.8 Building Design Standards. These changes are for the proposed addition of a new 
overlay zone “Restricted Residential Overlay (RR-O)” to the City of Morganton Zoning 
Ordinance.  
 
SUMMARY:  
See Detailed Handout attached for text amendment as proposed by the applicant.  
Current Zoning Ordinance Relevant Information 

• Overlay Zoning- Subject to underlying base zone district, but also additional 
requirements or permissions of the overlay zone. This is a tool to apply additional 
development standards to a district as well as exclude uses that would otherwise be 
permitted with the underlying base zoning district.  

• As proposed, the RR-O would serve to restrict uses in the district to residential and 
similar uses while allowing higher densities associated with MID, HID and CBD zoning 
districts.  

• The existing Neighborhood Conservation Overlay does not permit multi-family housing 
and therefore would not achieve the intended purpose of higher density. 

•  

 
(See base maximum residential density, not much difference between LID to 
HID, a RR-O Overlay would allow a HID area to be set aside for housing only, 
with higher density)  

• 4.3 Performance Standards-  



 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff analysis shows that there are benefits to adding this overlay. Benefits include the ability of 
reserving some MID or HID districts for denser housing options by adding more units per acre. 
This gives landowners the option to rezone properties while reassuring neighboring properties 
and City Council that commercial uses will not be permitted where they otherwise would be 
with the underlying base district. The City of Morganton is in need of housing and this is a way 
to set aside more intense uses of land for dense housing and/or gives landowners a better 
chance of successfully rezoning because adding RR-O would create added protection for 
bordering districts that have less intense land uses.  
 
 
NECESSARY COMMISSION ACTION:   
Motion to recommend denial or approval of this amendment for the addition of a new overlay 
zone, “Restricted Residential Overlay (RR-O)” with standards.  

























 
 
Rezoning Evaluation 
 
Case # 20-003 
William Andrews Rezoning  
Lyman Court  

Parcel Information  
Address PIN Parcel Size Current Zoning Requested Zoning 
313 West Union Street 2703156576 0.95 RH-CU RR-O/MID 
104 Lyman Court 2703157369 0.29 RH-CU RR-O/MID 
101 Lyman Court 2703158591 0.44 RH-CU RR-O/MID 
103 Lyman Court 2703159443 0.33 RH-CU RR-O/MID 

 
Background 
An application has been submitted to rezone the properties referenced in the above table. The attached 
location map also illustrates that the properties begin at the intersection of West Union Street and 
extend along Lyman Court.  The request would allow the current or any future owner to develop the 
properties residentially to the densities provided for Medium Intensity District (MID) without the 
ability to include any commercial uses as prescribed in the proposed Restricted Residential Overlay 
District (RR-O). The rezoning request, as submitted, would be contingent upon recommendation of 
the proposed RR-O by the Planning and Zoning Commission and ultimately upon adoption by City 
Council of the same.   
 
These properties, on May 2, 2005, were rezoned from Residential Low (RL) to Residential High 
Conditional Use. A conditional use permit was issued for fourteen (14) dwelling units, to comprise 
twelve (12) single family detached units and two (2) attached units (See attachment). However, the 
plans under the conditional use permit have never been carried out. Ordinance 05-10Z stated that the 
plans could continue with “minor” changes, however, a “material” change required City Council 
approval. Section 1.4.2(C) of the current zoning ordinance states: 

“Properties with existing Conditional Use District zoning shall retain their existing zoning with all 
conditions as approved unless the property owner requests a map amendment to one of the zoning 
designations as set forth in this Ordinance.” 

Therefore, City Council cannot grant an amendment to the CU Permit and it is necessary for the 
property to be rezoned for it to be developed in a fashion that is a “material change” from what was 
originally approved.  
 
On August 16, 2018 the Planning and Zoning Commission heard and recommended denial of a request 
for the properties to be rezoned to MID. Mr. Andrews then filed an appeal which placed the matter 
before City Council on September 10, 2018. That request ultimately failed.  
 
Earlier this year, city staff was contacted by Brian Gulden, an attorney representing Mr. Andrews, about 
the possibility of creating a text amendment that would allow Mr. Andrews to develop the property in 
such a way as to restrict the permitted uses of his property to exclude commercial as Mr. Andrews felt 
that was the objection to his 2018 request.  
 
The result of that effort was a proposal for a new overlay district (RR-O) that could be applied 
throughout the City of Morganton and its ETJ and not simply Mr. Andrews’ properties.  
 
 



 
Zone Comparison 
The Conditional Use District was a zoning tool available in the previous zoning ordinance. Its intent 
was to allow zoning districts in certain locations that would, absent special conditions, be 
inappropriately zoned. The conditional use district was attached to a standing zoning designation so 
that a property could be developed, with special conditions that ensured the intent of the zoning 
ordinance was realized.  The current zoning ordinance does not provide for conditional use zoning 
and in fact, the state of North Carolina has removed Conditional Use Zoning as a tool effective July 1, 
2021.  
 
The Medium Intensity District (MID) is intended for a variety of medium to high density residential 
and low to medium intensity civic, institutional, office, service, and retail uses designed to keep the 
impact on adjacent residential areas at a minimum. 
 
The Restricted Residential Overlay (RR-O) is crafted to restrict uses in the various underlying zoning 
districts while allowing the residential density of said districts.  
 
Public Services 
Access – The property at 313 West Union Street can be accessed by either West Union Street, a minor 
arterial, or Lyman Court, a fourteen (14) feet wide road used for residential access to properties fronting 
its borders. The other three properties are accessed only by Lyman Court. Because Lyman Court is 
substandard according to City street standards, it would have to be improved for development to occur.  
  
Water – A 6 inch cast iron pipe waterline currently connects from West Union Street towards West 
Concord Street and as such, water is available. 
 
Sewer – Sewer flows in two directions along Lyman Court, towards West Union Street and West 
Concord Street, leaving approximately a 150 feet gap between manholes. Upgrades will be necessary 
to serve certain portions of the property.  
  
Planned Land Use 
The City’s 2030 Future Land Use map indicates Residential Low Density as the continued future use 
of the property. A review of the attached Future Land Use map illustrates that all the surrounding 
properties are designated for Residential Low Density.  
 
Future Rezoning 
Future rezoning considerations should fully take into consideration the analysis considered in 
determining future land use as part of the Mission 2030 Plan as well as the recently adopted Downtown 
Master Plan. Should future rezoning occur, it should be considered concurrently with a review of all 
relative plans for this area as adopted by City Council. 
 
Spot Zoning 
This request will not constitute spot zoning since these properties are adjacent to a property zoned 
CBD and the MID zoning district by its definition exists to allow residential uses, and other uses in a 
way that they are appropriate adjacent to residential uses.   
  
Impact to Surrounding Properties 
The primary impact to the surrounding land would be the increase of traffic, particularly for those 
residences located on or adjacent to Lyman Court. Other impacts are possible depending on the density 
and development type the current owner or any future owner would consider.   
 
Staff Recommendation 



This rezoning request is adverse to the goals as stated in the Mission 2030 Plan in that it proposes a 
higher residential density than the recommended 2 single family dwelling units per acre. However, a 
need for higher density residential density of recognized and recommended for the area within ½ mile 
of the intersection of Union Street and Sterling Street. Lyman Court is approximately 1/3 of a mile 
from that intersection. Further, an MID/RR-O would provide a transition from the Central Business 
District with a density potentially limited only by height to the existing single family neighborhood that 
fronts West Union Street. All development standards that apply within the MID zoning district would 
apply along with additional dimensional standards related to height and setbacks for infill lots.  
 
Considering the above, staff recommends approval of this request.  































































CITY OF MORGANTON 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
September 29, 2020 
Dear Property Owner:     Public Notice 
 
 
The Morganton Planning and Zoning Commission will hold its meeting on Thursday, 
October 8, 2020 at 5:15 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 305 East 
Union Street Suite A100.  A public meeting will be held concerning a proposed rezoning 
of a 0.95+- acre track (PIN# 2703156576), 0.44+- acre tract (PIN# 2703158591),  0.33+- 
acre tract (PIN# 2703159443) acre track and 0.29 acre tract (PIN# 2703157369) located 
at 313 West Union Street, 101 Lyman Court, 103 Lyman Court and 104 Lyman Court 
from Conditional Use (CU) to Medium Intensity District & Restricted Residential 
Overlay (MID/RR-O) submitted by William F. Andrews.  
 

 
 
In response to the order issued by Governor Roy Cooper (phase 2.5), and to help mitigate 
the spread of COVID-19, the Planning & Zoning Commission will hold a meeting 
October 8, 2020.  The Council Chamber will be open to the public with limitations. 
Listed below are ways to participate and remain in compliance with the Governor’s 
orders. 
 
If citizens wish to address the commission during the meeting they may: 
 

1. Send an email to: jcain@ci.morganton.nc.us 
 

mailto:jcain@ci.morganton.nc.us


2. Send a letter to: City of Morganton, Attn: Jackie Cain, P.O. Box 3448, 
Morganton, NC 28680 

 
3. Hand deliver a letter to City Hall: 305 East Union Street by 9:00 a.m. on 

Wednesday, October 7, 2020. 
 

4. If a citizen would like to address the commission in person, they may attend the 
scheduled meeting.  Limitation of fifty (50) individuals are allowed in the council 
chamber.  Additional seating and live feed will be available in the lobby of city 
hall. Masks will be required.  Please contact Jackie Cain (828) 438-5260 with any 
questions.  Speakers during any public hearing shall be limited to three (3) 
minutes each.    
 

All comments (emails or letters) must be received by 9:00 a.m.  
on Thursday October 8, 2020. 

 
For more information please call the City's Development & Design Services Department 
at (828) 438-5260.  Interpreter services for the hearing impaired will be provided upon 
request.  Please call TDD at 1-800-676-3777 at least seventy two (72) hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting.  For other special needs services please call (828) 438-5260 at least 
48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 
Sincerely, 
Phillip Lookadoo 
Director D&D Services 
City of Morganton 



CITY OF MORGANTON 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA SUMMARY    DATE:   October 2020   
 
 
SUBJECT:   
Application submitted by Nancy VanNoppen for consideration of an amendment to the 
text of the Zoning Ordinance, Table of Permitted Uses, to allow Body Art Establishments 
(tattoos & body piercing) as a permitted use in the Central Business District with 
conditions.  
 
SUMMARY:  
Applicant Proposal- Add “P” for Permitted Use for Body Art Establishment (tattoos & body 
piercing) under CBD with Conditions under 3.4.4, add new subsection 3.4.4 (D) Tattoo & Body 
Piercing within CBD.  
 
Conditions-  
1) Business occupies either a back space not on street level (upper or lower floor).  
2) Business has no marketing materials or signage on front of building or storefront windows 

(Primary Façade) beyond directional sign or incidental signage (business name/logo and 
where they are located in the building).  

3) Business services no more than one customer at a time (“service” meaning actually having a 
customer in a chair and performing a service).  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the use is permitted in the CBD as a permitted use outright 
without additional conditions. If P&Z chooses to approve the text amendment with 
conditions as proposed by the applicant; staff recommends adding the following: 
 
 4) Permitted as a secondary/accessory use to the existing or proposed principle use.  
 
NECESSARY COMMISSION ACTION:   
Options: 

1. Motion to recommend approval or denial of proposed text amendment. 
2. Motion to recommend to approval with additional conditions 
3. Motion to recommend approval as a permitted use with no conditions.  






	PZag10-20
	Memorandum
	II.   APPEARANCES


	Planning Zoning Minutes July 9, 2020
	Minutes
	Morganton Planning & Zoning
	UMembers Present:U                                                       UMembers Absent:
	I. OLD BUSINESS:
	Mr. Dickens stated a copy of the minutes from the June 18, 2020 meeting were provided.  Motion to adopt as submitted was approved unanimously (6-0).
	Item 2:       Review of City Council action since last meeting
	Mr. Dickens asked Mr. Lookadoo to update commission on actions taken by city council.
	Mr. Dickens stated this time is set-aside for individuals to come before the planning board to express any planning related concerns to the planning board.
	III. NEW BUSINESS:

	RR-O Staff Report
	Text Amendment App
	Proposed Amendment
	Rezoning Evaluation_20201008_Lyman Court-William Andrews
	Rezoning app-101 Lyman Ct CU NC-O to MID RR-O
	Rezoning app-103 Lyman Ct CU NC-O to MID RR-O
	Rezoning app-104 Lyman Ct CU NC-O to MID RR-O
	Rezoning app-313 W Union CU NC-O to MID RR-O
	Map 01 Current Zoning 2020
	Map 02 2030 Land Use 2020
	Map 03 Utilities 2020
	Map 04 Location 2020
	Map 05 Traffic 2020
	william andrews 2005 site plan
	Ordinance 05-10z
	Andrews-Lyman Ct CU NC-O to MID RR-O
	September 29, 2020
	Dear Property Owner:     Public Notice

	Staff Report-Tattoo CBD
	Text Admendment Application
	CBD Map



